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IN THE UNITIlO STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 


UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) 

) 


Plaintiff, ) 

) 

v. ) 
) CONSENT DECREE 

SUSSEX COUNTY, DELAWARE. and ) 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ) 
OF SUSSEX COUNTY, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

} 

I. The United States initiatad this action to enforce the Fair Housing Act, Title vm 

ofthe Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended ("the Fair Housing Act" or "the FHA"), 42 U.S.C. 

§§ 3601-3619. in its CQmplaint, the United State. a11egestha1 Sussex County, Delaware (LIthe 

County"), and the Planningl1lld Zoning Commission ofSIlI!SelI: County ("the Pl!11llling and 

Zoning Collllllission" or "the Commission") vlolated the FHA by denying the appw;ation of 

DiamOnd Slate Community Land Trust ("Diamond State CL'r') for preliminary subdivlslon plat 

approval for New Horizons, a proposed oommunity oflow-income hOWling in Sussex County. 

Specifically, the United States alleges thst the defendants violated 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) by 

making nWlvailable or denying dwellings to persons on the basis ofrace, color, or natiOnill origin 

and violated 42 U.S.C. §3617 by interfering with the exercise or enjoymentoftigbts under the 

FHA. The United Slates further alleges thiI.t the defendants' conduct cOWltitutes a denial ofiigbts 

to 11 group ofpersons thlil raises an isSWI ofgeneral public importance in viollilioll of the FHA, 

42 !J.B-C. § 3614(a), and a discriminatory honsing practice under 42 U.S.C. § 3614(b)(1). 
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2. Diamond State CLT is II nonprofit corporation that provides affordable housing 

throughout the State ofDejaware to households earning no more than 80 peroent of the Area 

Median Income as clileoilited by the U.S Depllltment ofHousing and Urban Development 

("HUD"). In w around 2007, Diamond State eLf \>egan developing a project to build a 

subdivision ofaffordable homing in Sussex County. In the spring of 2010, Diamond State CLT 

submitted ita final revised application and supporting rIlSteriais seeking preliminary cluster 

subdivision plat spproval from the Plauning II!Id Zoning Commission for New Horizons, II 

community of50 affordable single-family homes in southwest Sussex County near the town of 

Laurel, Dellrware. On July 14, 2010, the Comruisslon voted to deny Diamond State CLT's 

application, II!Id the County Council affllJlled that de\:ision on October 19, 2010. The United 

States alleges that the defendll!l1s' actions were taken because of the race, color, or national 

origin of the prospective residents ofthe affordable housing in the New HorlzollS development. 

It remains the intent of Diamond State eLI to develop New HorizolfS at the proposed location. 

3. On November 29, 203 0, Dinmond State CLT nledatimely complaint with HUn 

plltSuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3610 against the Sussex County Conncil and the Commission, alleging 

diseriminstion in housing on the bll8es of f!lCe, .color, md national origin. Pursuant to the 

requlr1lments of42 U. S.C. § 3610, the Secre!.!l.ry of HUD determined that the compillint involved 

-the legality or state or local zoning or atOOr rand 1.1$0 Jaws Of ordinances. Accordingly, plltSuant 

to 42 U.S.C. § 361O(g)(2)(C), on or aoout Janusry 14, 2012, the Secre!.!l.ry referred this matter to 

the Attorney Oeneral for appropriste action. 

4. The Defendants deny alilillegations -ill the complalnt and contend that Iill ofthtir 

actions and decisions were based on legitimate and nondiscriminatory reasons. The perfofrllS!lce 
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9fany acts under this Consent Decree (hereina.fter the "Decree") does not constitute any 

admission or finding offault or liability whatsoever on the part of the Defendants. The United 

States and the defendants agree that the hroad and eqnitable distribution of affordable housing 

promotes sustninable and integrated residential patterns, increases fair and equal access to 

economic, educatio!llll and other opportunities, and advances the health and welfare ofthe 

residents of Sussex County. The parties further agree that, in order to avoid protracted and costly 

litigation, this lawsuit should be resolved without a trial. Therefore, the parties consent to the 

entry of this Decree, as showo by the signatares of theirrepresentanves below. 

5. TIlls Deeree is effective immediately upon its entry by the Co1Jrt. For purposes of 

this Decree, the phrase "date ofthis Decree" shall refer to the date on which the Court adopts this 

Decree as an order ofthe Court. 

6. For the purposes of this Decree, the terms "dwelling" and "person" have the 

meanings set ont in the FHA. 42 U.S.C. § 3602(b) and (d). 

7. For the purposes of this> Decree, the !eno "Affordable Housing" means housing in 

which any portion thereof is designed or intooded to serve households anming less than 80 

percent ofthe Area Median mcome as caleniated by the U,So Department of Housing and Urban 

Development. 

ACCORDINGLY, It ill bereby ADJUDGED, ORDERED, and DECREED: 

1 GENERAL INJUNCTION 

8. The defendants, their employees, electad or appointed officials, officers, agoots, 

and all other persons or entities acting in concert or pllrticipation with them, ere enjoined from: 

:, 
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II. Diller! minating hi the sale or ten/alo! II. dwellhig or otherwise lMldng 

lIt1available or doauying a.dwellhis tt) auy person beoonseof!he race,colof, or llJItiQlllllllrilj;i1l of 

mot ~n or{)f My pel:llOn obtammg,residillj 111,01 hitending to reside hi llUclldwell1ng or of 

!lilY ptel'SOllllllSol;\iEited W'ith thal buyer or ~; 

b, Adop!hig, 11l~llg,oofbl1:~~ Or mplerrmotirlg MY z.ofliogor land-UBI} 

ItWs, regulations, pOlicie8.procedures, orptactiCtlS Ih!I.! disctimil!al:e 011 the basil! ofi1\Ce, c(jlor, 

or 1IlI1lomli origlnln 'lli.olatitm oh!:te FHA, Or{;11\forci~1i\: or im,Jemcnting !Illy neutr!li mmng or 

land-usehiW$, tegulll!iol1'S, policie'S, procoourm, orpractioos in amtmnet ~al: di'SCrilllirulte~ on 

the bru>isofrlWll, color, or IllItionlll origin hi violation of!.l:le FHA; 

o. Coer{liog,inliwdaliJ;l.g, ifll'e<riening, interfering wim, or :retaliatIDll' ~ 

lilly penon infhe ~ise Of enjoymentof, or on IIOOOlII1t oihls orner fulvingeKerci1!OO ot 

ePjoyed, Or onllCCoUlltofhis Qf her :altving.lI:lded or e!!CQu. !Illy other pcroon iii !he exercise. 

or enjo}'lll!:1lt of; any ri;ght Il'ran\:elior ~ed 'by 1heIHA; ·l)l 

d. lnterrcrIDg with me ~,Wl1l!>1opment, {)f oomuucU<m.ofI!IlY 

.af:furdable housing OOcll\!Jf;I ofthe race;, 0010,1',0,1' tw,t/QlJlIl origill{')Ciu pr(JlIJleot!~ rcsldoo\ll. 

n.D1l'VELOI'MENT OFN£WHOmzONS BYDIAMONJ) S'fATE CL1' 

9. 1:'Ile defendants; 1l!eir emp1b)'!lOl!, fillectedor IIppolJillld offIcials,o:t'fieors,l.IgeIlU!, 

and all other pc'I1;ollS er l.IDtities acting mwtied!t,Qr Plit!l-ci;plllioll with ihem., WI' eajolnlld:!rom 

OJ)I!\n!Ct/lig. delaying. o:r intlllferlng wifhany&'fordJ!b!e.l1ouilIngthlll ig being developoo and/or 

OOI!.'!tnll;tW [IT tbHt iSlll'Oposed to be devel~ !I!ltlIm' cilJistnlC\'ed In SUll~!Jl> COUllty by ,Diamoild 

State (;L T(lnc/,ooitlg, but oot limiti:dteJ, lite Fj)~ dUlllei' subdWlsloll. neltf Luttrel, Dclll'Wlll'e, 

11:1 be known ll$ New Hornons). orby any entities oWIW/.I by or tlSSOQilll!lid with DiamondStatt; 

4 
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CLT, wiiholit a ~ubsllu:!!ial,material, .lIildcompetent justification tool ilJ ueutral ~n ill! f!\OO, 

consistent willi applIcable mnill/l Mel IMd-\lSI! biws, r!lgumliolll!, policies, Mel procedures, Md 

halled 1m ~dl! tllllt arc universally .:pplioolhroll.glloll.t·1iie CoUl!jy, 

i 
I 	 10. 'The PlllllOlng aud ZQning Comllill1sion shall reconsilkr·theapjlllcation by 

If: 	

Diamond SlIIteCLT for prellininary cluster l'IUbcll.vision plat approval for NewIrorimmlin 

ac<Xlrda!lCll with theJ.hllbwlng PfOvisiOlll!: 

, 

a. Upon submission by Dwnooo $tate CLI 01 either 0) a:revised 

llWlicatioo i!tld supporting ml:\terials or (2) 1'1 ;1irlttcIJ .requeat rOT rehearing Oil the application.and 

suppol1i1l1l materials origiilally collllideredby lila Commission at Il. public hearillg on rmre 10, 

'20W, 1;b& ComnllllSion !!hall schedule II Ilerumg Qn. thtl iJpplieationat the nc:xt IIvall1ib1e dlte, .and 

i in no eveaL lat!l!r !him 4:5 days Ilil:er DilI!JJ.Olld Stare CLT wbmitl! itsrevisedapplioaUon or mittm! 

tequelltft,r rell¢lU"ll1jj 

b. At this hem.ng. the ColUl1iWsill.l1l1h11ll, at a~um. :remwmy proposed 

clllidition.s Oil the apJ!roval. oftlle prellmiuai:)1 su'lidivlsioll plat stibtl'llrtedby Diamond State C['T; 

c. Following the CO!lCI~n oxthtl heiitlng; Ihe Commislrion Il\JlilI vote Oll the 

prelJmlnllfY SUbdivi si()lt plat in !!<;!:()rd;mcc Wiiliappli.ll.blll~nIDg ;md 1!Illd.-Wl61aws, 

:regul!ltiolll\. policies, aud pruccdnres•. The COOlIilfimon ~hllll not dmy !ipproval. for ihc 

prllllnili!uy ~llbdivis!()l111lat'l1ot shill! it impoilell!lYeOllditio~Oil the approval ihll;t are 

i!1!1t1lrlallydiflllrmot addiliolllli to lhlllle proposcdbytDiamond State CLT, WltOOllt II 

irubllillntial, n'lllt;lria:l. 1i!1d.. COIIlp;lI<lc1lt justifiCl!UOn th!Il isrlJ,'lfjt.1!1 Qnits fl\OO; ool1!1isi:eIII with 

Q~mnillg ;md IBIllj..US<;\ law~; :(egulatillt!S,Jlt!Jlejl1.~, ami pr<l<lOOutes; llaseil oll~l.andrtrds itmt 
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are llIliversally applied throughout the County; and documented in detailed written findings 

explaining the specific grounds for the action. 

rl. In its review of and decision on Diamond State CLT's preliminary 

subdivision plat application for New Horizons, the Conuuission shall consider only those factors 

set forth in Sussex County Subdivision and Zoning Codes,including specifically § 99-9(C) and 

shall specifically recognize the following: 

i. Diamond State CLT is IlOt proposing the New HOriZOllS 

development under the County's Moderately Priced Housing Unit Program (Ch. 77 of the Sussex 

County Code), and thus the requirements or criteria applJcable to development proposals brought 

under that program do not apply; 

ii. Delaware State Steategies for Policies and Spending shmild not be 

used as a basis for denial if the project otherwise complies with the Sussex County Code, and in 

particular, the subdivision ordinance (Ch. 99 of the Sussex County Code); 

iii. With regard to the application for New Horizons, proximity to 

public teansportation cannot form a basis for denial ofthe application; and 

iv. The Sussex County Zoning Code eCh. 115 ofthe Sussex County 

Code) does not limit cluster subdivisions to Town Centers, Developing Areas, or 

Environmentally Sensitive Developing Areas as designated by the County's Comprehensive 

Plan; and 

e. Within seven (7) days ofactifig on Diamond State CLT's application ill. 

accordance with this paragraph, the defendants shall issue II public notice of suchaetlon in The 

6 
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News Journal and The Sussex Countian periodicals directing readers to the County's website (as 

referenced in paragraph 11(e) below) for more infonnation. 

11. The defendrults shall work in full cooperation and good faith with Diamond State 

CLT to facilitate the funding, development, and construction processes for New Horizons. The 

defendants' good faith efforts shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

a. During the tenn ofthis Decree, the defendants, their employees, elected or 

appointed officials, officers, agents, and all other persons or entities acting in concert or 

participation with them shall not publicly disparage Diamond State CLT or the proposed New 

Horizons development or pUblicly question the viability of the community land trust mode! for 

affordable housing development; 

b. The defendants shall, upon request by Diamond State CLT and in a timely 

mrumer, provide letters from the County to actual or potential funders or any other governmental 

entity indicating the County's support for the development ofNew Horizons. Any such letters 

shall, at a minimum, express support for the development of New Horizons; explain how New 

Horizons comports with the COWlty's goal to "[f]acilitate decent, safe, and sanitary .housing for 

low and moderate income people throughout Sussex County," as expressed in the Housing 

Element ofthe County's June 2008 Comprehensive Plan Update; and contain any specific 

information required from the County by the funder or governmental entity; 

c. The defendants shall ensure that all zoning, land use, building, and any 

other type of approvals or pennits required by the defendants are issued in a timely manner in 

order to allow development and construction to proceed. Nothing in this paragraph shall be 

construed to prevent the defendants from applying their zoning and land-use requirements In a 

7 
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non-discriminatory manner or from ensuring that New Horizons complies with valid 

requirements of applicable law; 

d. The defendants shall generally cooperate with Diamond State CLT 

throughout the remainder of the state and County-level planning and approval processes, and 

throughout the infrastructure development, building permit process, construction and sales 

phases oflhe New Horizons development; and 

e. Within thirty (30) days after the approval oflhe final subdivision plat for 

New Horizons, the defendants shall list the New Horizons development as an affordable housing 

subdivision on the County's Community Development and Housing website, separate from 

information on the website regarding the County's Moderately Priced Housing Unit Program. 

The defendants shall inclnde the name and location ofthe New Horizons development, the 

number and type of homes available in that development, the eligibility criteria for potential 

homebuyers, and contact information for Diamond State CLT. Defendants shall submit to the 

Department of Justice ("DOJ',)I a printout of the Community Development and Housing website 

showing the information on New Horizons as described in this paragraph within ten (10) days of 

listing the New Horizons development on the website. 

III. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATED to AFFORDABLE AND FAIR 

HOUSING 

12. During the term of this Decree, if the Planning and Zoning Commission deClines, 

rejects, or denies any type of request or application tor zoning or land use approval relating to an 

Affordable Housing proposal or a proposal processed under the Moderately Priced Housing Unit 

I All submissions to DOl requited by the Consent Decree; including .011 tho,e required by part V!I, below, shall sent 
by overnight courier addressed to: Chief, AM: DJ #J7;-15-46, Housing and Civil Enforcement Section, Civil 
Rights Division, United States Department of Justice, \ 800 G Street NW, Washington, DC, 20006. 

8 
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Pro.gmID or !he S!l.Ii!leX Cuililt)' Rentlll1'r(}gt'Ilm, Qr ifthe SU$S~l{ COlll1ty Couneil affil1lllll!l1Y such 

decision, thom the entity so acting shall p:!'ep!I!C detail&! wtilllen filldlng.~ explaining tII!.lllPe<linc 

grounds furil:$ action, For putpOi!ell ~rtbls pro'l'iirion,!he i!U!\J!'e 10 lIct on a request wiihin a 

n::asollil:ble time poriod .hall be deill'llild ti denial. Aropy ofaflY wrilllen findlngo sbalt be 

proyidtld {(line persoll orpersollS Mmng therequmor Bppijentillll witbin ron (10) days of1lle 

d!Ite onwhich therrmrl deciruon was Ilume, 

13, For tile duration of tbls Deeme, tho defooda!\ts.well Ulldmtalm!lll. Affordable ami 

Fair Huosing Marketillg PII!l1 to e;nooumge the. developMent of bowiing opportunities, .includillg 

AJ'lbrdsble Homing lUld holl8.ing dcvelop$ under tl.!.e ~oderately Pnced Hoosing UlLlt~ 

IIIIiItheSIlIlSex County l't!mtal Pmgmm,that are: IIwilahl.elllldlloocsllible 10 al! residents of 

SlllRIexCoIUltY «'_css ofrru:e, cQlor. OFtlali!llll!l origi:lL WIthin one hundred (tOO) dl:\Ys of 

tile .~·oftbls Decree, the def~~han sublnil tu DOraprop<:;l/lld Affiirdable and Fair 

HOlllling Marketing l'1lUl, DOl snal) review and upProVe or suggest chw1,ge,~ 10 the Pj!lIi Within 

wi!b:i.n. f'ive(S) day!!, The ddendantsshall include in the Affhrdable and Fair Housing Marketing 

Plal1 the f<lllowing; 

derei;dolm~ WilllllideJ,tilke. cotitie.l thedefenill!nlll Win eonl!lJ;t, aIId material!! !he.ddendflill:$ will 

use to CI:IOOumge huusingoovelop= 1D proPOB6 and collstructaff:ordable holl$ing I:b:mughoot . 

Sus_CllUl'lty..Speeifica.lly, the parties agree 1IIat the defilndariti'activilies under·th!lI 

sulipm:l!gl.1Iph will iuclude; bm notbe lil1'lile.d to, the following: 
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i. the COUll!}' win .!lIlcourage develapers to affi!'lllatlvely market their 

1.1IIits to divflille populatiol1ll by makingu clear in t~CoWlty's comments derlng the. PLUS 

praC!l$S un the development pmpqsill that this 1$ the CQ1.m(y's policy; 

n. the County will di!VIlIQP ~llUl~ timt will 00 

ioootporlllild into every residential development planrevlllWwbJoot to the PLUS pmces~ whi.~h 

~$forth the County's poUey toaffirmlltively filrt:hl:r fair Mm>ing by emphasiZIng the desire ·f'or 

the creiliion ofraclaUy/et!Wcaliy djr'rl'M~ mi)!l,1d-illc.;)me tQmm1ll:lities and enooungil'lll 

devebpflilllo affmmrtlvely mar1ret their unil$to dlVoolO'l pOpiJIatiOllll; 

iii. the CpWlly will prOpOSO'lIUl Qrdiwulce tol.Il9diiYi!s Mod.trImlly 

J>riced Housing Unit r'MPHU") Pi'OgrIIm to apply to homebuyers eaming; 50"A> to 125% ofIll" 

Co;mnty's mediIW income:; 

IV. the Gaunt)' will cOlltin[ll: d~ollllwith Diamond State 01T and 

other providers oflQW to moderate ill(:Qme hlJll1!ing tl> CI¢.!rte additiol!ll.l ino;:ntiv¢s wilhin the 

MPHU Ptogrtun to entice develo~ra to prl'ee 50011: Mllie!l 1(1 be affordable to lawllt area median 

i:w:!I\I!lI. fiImiliCli' lind 

V, the Cowlly will rnmiUlatel! pglicyregllrding AffQrdabwBotWng 

jlIojeet!< Slieklng snppwt, i:w:luding pmmm through which an Affordable HoUSing project may 

ob\lll!1 coilditkmlllsllflwrtidters frolll the Co\llJl:jl C()lllll1~11 AffMdable Housing C(mlllruclion 

and/or may ob\lll!1 waiw,rs ofeert!lillooes rall!1lllgtll !he pll'lUliug approv!!l ~$S, 

b. A deaiption ofthe specifio oll1l:el\clllllid llWki:ting "",u'Yities the 

<lefeMSIII:£ :will Wl~>Mtmes the defe~wUi tOlllilf:,t, aild tI!lI.=ials IlJ.ec defel'ld!llll!i will 
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use to advertise housing opportunities, including llfibrdable housing, in Sussex County to all 

residents of the County regardless of race, color, or national origin; 

c. A description ofa webpage to be created by the County on its website 

addressing these topics, including the proposed content of the webpage; and 

d. A timetable for implementation of each specific activity. 

IV. FAffi HOUSING COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

14. Within thirty (30) days after the entry oftrus Decree, the defendants shall 

designate an existing Sussex County employee as the FIIlr Housing Compliance Officer 

("FReOn). The FReO shall have the responsibility to receive complaints ofalleged 

diecrimination in houalng, zoning, andlor land use against Sussex County, serve as a resource to 

the defundanta and their officers, elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents on fair 

housing, and coordinate the County's cempliance with this Decree. 

J5. The mea shall be designated to receive and review all complalnts ofhousing 

discrimination made agalnst the defendattts orany officer, elected or appointed officiai, 

employee, or agent of the defendants. Ifcomplaints are made verbally, the FHCO shall make a 

contemporaneous written record ofthose complaints. 

16. Within fifteen (15) days ofreceiving.a complaint ofhOUSing discriminationmede 

agllinstthe defendants or any officer, elected or appointed official, employee, or agent of the 

defendants, the FHCO shall provide HUD and DO] with 1\ Copy ofthe complaint, my decuments 

filed with the complaint, and any written response to the complaint hy the defendants,and shall 

inform both HUD and DOJ whether the complalnt has been resolved. If the complnint hIlS not 

II 
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been resolved, the FHCO 'shall inform HUD and DOJ of any efforts the defendants undertook or 

plan to undertake to resolve the complaint. 

17. The FRCO shall maintain copies ofthis Decree, the Fair Housing Policy 

described in part V, below, and the HUD Complaint (orm nnd HUD pamphlet entitled "Are you 

a victim ofhousing discrimination?" (HUD official forms 903 and 903.1, respectively) and make 

these materials freely available to anyone, upon request, without charge, including all persons 

making fair housing complaints to the FHCO. 

18. During the term of this Decree, the FHCO shall report to the County every six 

months on activities taken in compliance with this Decree. 

V. FAIR HOUSING POLICY 

19. Within thirty (30) days of the date ofthis Decree, the defendant.~ shall adopt a Fair 

Housing Policy, the text of which shall include the content found in Attachment A to this Decree. 

The Fair Housing Policy shall list the name and contact information for the County's Fair 

Housing Compliance Officer designated in accordance with part lV, above. The defendants shall 

include the Fair Housing Policy in all literature and information or application materials 

provided to residential developers, including developers of affordable housing. The defendants 

shall include the Fair Housing Policy as II readily accessible link on the County's website. 

20. Within thirty (30) days of the date ofthis Decree, the defendants shall place the 

phrase "Equal Housing Opportunity" or the fail' housing logo (as described in 24 C.F.R. § 

110.25) on the County's website. The defendants shall place the same in all future published 

notices and advertisements related to housing or residential development. 

VI. TRAINING 

12 
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21. Within ninety (90) days ofthecntry of this Decree, and annually thereafter for the 

duration of this Decree, the defendants shall provide in-person training on the requiremeuts of 

this Decree and of the FHA to all County officers, elected and appointed officials, or employees 

who have duties related to the planning, zoning, pennitTIng, construction, or occupancy of 

residential housing, including, but not limited to: the County Administrator; all members, staff 

and employees of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Board ofAdjustment, and the 

County Council; and all staff and employees ofthe Department of Community Development and 

Housing and the Department of Planning and Zoning, The training(s) should be conducted in 

accordance with the following: 

a. The trdiniug(s) shall be conducted by a qualified third part(y/ies), snbject 

to the approval of the United States. The traincr(s) shall not be connected to the defendants or 

1heir officers, elected or appointed officials, em.ployees, agents or cOllILSeL No fewer than sixty 

(60) days before the date of each training under this paragraph, the defendants shall submit to 

DOJ the name of the person(s) or organization(s) proposed to provide the training, together with 

copies of the professional qualifications of such person(s) or organization(s) and copies of all 

materials to be used in the training, 

b. Any expenses associated with the tmining(s) shaH be borne by the 

defendants. 

c. The trainiug(s) shall be video recorded, and the defendants shall maintain 

copies or the written materials provided for each training. Each newly elected, appointed, or 

hired individual covered by this paragraph shall first receive training within thirty (30) days after 

the date he or she enters office or commences service or employment, either (1) by attending the 

13 
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next regularly scheduled amlJJru livetra/nlng, if it OCC!.\r& within the thirty (3J)) day peri{)~, or {2) 

by feviewil1lj the recording ofthe moat re~ent live irai:nillg and receiving copies ofallY written 

lnateriwsprovided fin tluU traini!lg. 

22. TIle defendants shall p,rovldea copy oithisDecree tu each pBrlltl,uequired to 

receive the ft.l.\ni!lg(a). 

23. The dl'>fendants shall requl~each tralnee tu .:",'qlIte a certific~tli.lll confirming: il 

rosar her attoodancc; 11) the date ofthe 1:l:Ilinlhg; and iii) .Iili! m:!wr recel pt and cilmprehension of 

the Docfee. TheCertilicatioo ofTnlil1ing lUJ.d Receiptot'Col1SBl1t Doo~"eap¢arIf lit Attachment, 

S II;) this DeQree. All trainees shall c(lmpi<:lto:> the ~ertific~tfons .at 1he <Xlflclllsillll Qfeach trainin~ 

session. 

vn. REPORTING AND RECOlU) KEEPING 

24, Within ten (10) days ofootingupoo Diamond State eLI's preliminary 

subilivl:l(on platapplica!i1Jllfur New .\ii;l;ti:t01:li<!!"; described in paragraph 10, lIbove.1be 

ilcli::nrnmts ~l sul:>mlt the lollow>ng to IjOJ fuwritlng: 

!l. .The Planning1Ilid Zonir1gC01n:lll:(ssli:ll\.'~deci~i\lIl.()n tI1e New Hlil'lromi 

~liminmy llUl;lI11.vision pl!\~ lndu.dinga list (}fany wnditiOllllimpooed; 

11. Any dlitailed WrittCll fmdingllll8. d~sOIi'ql:cllllp!lt!!.gmph 10(0),. al:>QV.i.\ if 

<lppU'Clible; and 

c. Copies ofpUb! icnCl!cespubllslied!lJl dcsciibedm paragraph. 1O(,,)~ aboV\'J. 

25. Wlthln iliirty~:fivc {:'i5)dllYS afiCl."crttryofthis Decree,the defendants shall su]:Jrnit 

thetilllowl.n.g 10 DOJ in writing: 

II. The nam~,nddress 1Ind telephonenumberorthe Fail: H01.lf!lng; Compliance 

14 
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Officer deseribed inpartTV,abovlI: Should th~ idemity offue C(FI!lpliance Officer Chllllllll 

during; the term ofthis Ile~fee, the defendants shall, withltt.fiftecll (1 Sj days of such change, 

notify DOJ in Writing· ofthe pame offue new Officer I!Dd his Of het cOlltae! infol:lrullion; 

b. A copy ofthe final adopted Fail: Housing Policy II~ deseri1,led inpamgrJI.ph 

19, *"ve~ 

Teqltired by par;agmpli. 21 (lI), above. 

26. Witlfulotte hundred (1()()j.Uays afle:relJll1' QfjhisDC;lprec,.tIle deterldMts.snaU 

submIt alt exe>cutoo copies ofthe Certification of1'railling.W1d R!l\)ciptof COllllcnt Decree 

(Attachment B}deilcribtd in J,!8I:!!graph~3.!tl»lIe, iifJd 1\le~!'OPlISed Affi.Jrtlableand Fair H"using , 

~1retlllgl'llin daSJlnoed!llpatllgrapb. 13, above. 

17, ·the dcfendml. _hull dJl'Velop.mMol'llabll!1 H01.l~!nB webpage lobe publicly 

~sibl!l ftnm the CoU!itJf'~ II1Ilin webSite; Mleasl twice amluruly furthe term ofthIsDettr;ee, 

dcfundllJ1js. will FIlS! complillUce rej>OtbJ un the AffoidllbleHouiln.g we~agedetailjl!ll all 

IIcti9!\s Ihey have lIlken to ful:tiU their obliglltit)l\li undm-this P"""Ctl sincetne lruit romplilllme . 
, - .. , , , . 

report posli'1g. 'The derendmls 8ha1! postmeir IlI'si fepmt lind l1otil'Y -the United Stete<> (IfBuell 

posting wlilim sill (6)l!ltintM lifter entryof iliI: Decr;ee,AtldpOstsubse(luetit reports l,jVIIJ:y sIX (6) 

m<:lnihs !l1t:reatle, fot the duration of/he DeeRe, except thaI the finol report FIlstingsll8.li .be 

l1'ladl':With llotillClllioll. to the lJnile.d Stitles !1i:Jt less \hIlli, sooy{6lJ) days prior mthe elipinilioIl jJf 

thIs beCl'~, The defi::Il.dan~sha!1 indooeln the "ompUIl<lr.e report )J9Stings, iii II minimum, links 

15 
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to the following information: 

a. Copies ofany letters of support by the defendants for New Horizons as 

described in paragraph II (b), above; 

b. A summary ofeach zoning or land-use request or application related to 

Affordable Housing or housing being processed under the Moderately Priced Housing Unit 

Program or the Sussex County Rental Program (including, but not limited to, those for 

subdivision plat approvals, site plans, variances, or building permits) on which the defendants 

have made a detennination, indicating: i) the date of the application; ii) file applicant's name; iii) 

the applicant's current street address; iv) file street address of the subject property or proposed 

housing; v) the defendants' decision(s) regarding the matter, including any decision on appeal; 

vi) file reasons for each decision, including a summary offlle facts upon which the defendants 

relied and a copy ofany detailed written findings issued relating to denied affordable housing 

proposals as described in paragraph 12, above,.if applicable; and vii) links to any minutes or 

audio recordings from all meetings or hearings discussing the 2'.Oning request or application; 

c. Representative copies of any published notices or advertisements 

containing the phrase "Equal Housing Opportunity" or the fair housing logo as described in 

paragraph 20, above; 

d. Copies of any Certifications of Training Illld Receipt ofConsent Decree 

(Attachment B) described in paragraph 23, above, that are signed after the preceding compliance 

report was issued; 

e. Copies of any materials that have been previously submitted to DOJ under 

this Decree ifsuch materials have been substantially altered or amended since they were last 

16 
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submitted to DOJ; and 

f. Copies of!lily cl1anges to the Couuty's zoning or l!lIld-use laws, 

regulations, policies or procedures addressing the construction ofor approval process for 

Affordable Housing or housing being processed uuder the Moderately Priced Homing Unit 

Program or the Sussex County Rental Program thlll were enacted after the preceding compliance 

report was issued. 

28. The defendants shall provide DO] wi!h 11 oopy ofany propoaed clmnge to the 

County's zoning or land-use laws, regulations, policies or procedures addressing the con!;t:mction 

of or approval process for Affordable HollJling or housing !:ieing processed under !he Moderately 

Priced Housing Unit Program or the Sussex County Rents! Program, or a link to the proposed 

change on CollIlty'i; Affordable Housing webpage, prior to the oonsideration ofthe proposed 

change by the defend!lllls. The notice to DO] rnsy be made electronically and will be marleto 

coincide with !lilY public notice requirement under Stare law. 

29. For the duration oftrus Depree, !he defendants shaH retaln all records relating to 

any provision ofthls Decree. DOJ shall have the opportonity to inspect and ooPY any SlIch 

records after giving reasonable notice to Peunse! for the defendants. 

VIII. COMPENSATION OF AGGRIEVED PERSONS 

30. Within sixty (60) days after entry oltbis Decree, the defendants shall pay from 

insurance proceeds the amollnt of seven hundred fifty thonsand dollars ($750,000.00) to 

Diamond State CLT for !he pnrpose ofcompensating it for the harm that it suffered es a resnlt of 

the defendants' decisiOIJ8 !lot to approve the preliminary cluster subdivision plat for the New 

Horizons devruopmCllt. The sum: slmU he paid by wire transfer to ReIman, Dane & Colfax 

17 
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l>(LC, cOll)1sel for JRl!.rnond Stat<l CLT. 

31 , Upon entry ofthis J)eCcetl, The United Stai!:B will obtain. wilhin ten (lO) days from 

Diamond State CLT a slglled release in the f'1lJ:n1 ofAttaCImt01lt C to thIs Decree. WiiDJn nve (5) 

dllYS ofobtail1lng Ilw signed relelillereferericedhmiu, calJ,ll$e! for the United Stales will notify 

(''Ounsel for the defendantS lhat it is in p06se3sron of tile:Bignell rel"flSe.. Wilbinfivil (5)' daY.ll9f 

rt:ceivmg notice that counsel for Dil'llllorui BtaleCr:rbas· received the wire transfer descri'bedirr 

p.n-ag.rapn 3.0 olthis DecJ'l:Ij, couooelfor lhe Upitecl S(!ltes sluill dcliverthe or~, sigmod 

release tooounsel fer the defendants. 

IX, JURISDlCttONM'DSCOI'EOF I)FA.:REF: 

32. The parties stipulate tWi th~Collrtt'1nds that the COlJrl hall pl'lt1lormi juriSdiction 

r.wer'lhedefendlUlts lot !lu!po~ ofthiscivilaetion,!\1i\d subject matter jurisdiction (wet: the 

united S\ales'elaitll81n !his actio:nplltSuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 133.1 and !345, $d 42 U.S£. n 
3614(1i.} Mel 3614{b)(1). 

33. T.biifDecre~ shall rel1:l~in efj'¢Ctfcf "!lorioa offom( 4) years af!~ its ~. 

The ('..Qorl~.bJI\\reUUnjw:isdictionover \htIlJetilltl ter the dlmll!on of 11><;1 Ued_for tl:tepw:pow 

ofcnfaiclng its pro'l'iBI0lls and terms. T!w casesh!llllledl.o,lmssed wilhprejlldiC6 When the.· 

Decl'f!.!! expires. The UnltOO States may lllUl{1;) !lie Court w.eKttmd the dlll'II1ioo of the Decree In 

the· ixller$llI ofjUSliee, 

34. Any time limit.s forperfotl!i>l'l!re imposed by !his Dec.rcemay be extended by 

mlinm.l writt>:n agreement of the pariielil. The oIhe.pro\ll$u,tIS ofthis Decl'f!.!! may h.e~d by 

wrlttelli agreement Qt' the pllrtles or by mQtidn to th!l' Court InheluQdificationuh, provislll.l! 

. otlter lhatilltimeliirut ror perfOll'Wl!Jce is mll1:l:e by 'Nxitien ~etne.llt ·of!htIpilrties, i:beilsuon 

18 
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modification will be effective upon filing oflhe written agreement with the Court and remain in 

effect for the duration of the Decree or until such time as the Court indicates throngh written 

order that it has not approved the modification. 

X. ENFORCEMENT OF TIDS DECREE 

35. The parties shatl endeavor in good faith to resolve informally any differences 

regllIding interpretation of and compliance with this Decree prior to bringing such matters to the 

Court for resolution. However, in tbe event of a failure by the defendants to perform in a timely 

manner any act required by this Decree, or otherwise to act in conformance with any provision 

thereof, the United States may move this Court to impose any remedy authorized by law or 

equity. Remedies include, but are no! limited to, fmdings ofcontempt, an order requiring 

performance of such act or deeming such act to have been performed, and an award ofany 

damages, costs, and reasonable attorneys' fees that may bave been occasioned by the violation or 

failure to perform. 

XI. COSTS AND FEES 

36. 	 1116 parties will bear their own costs and fees associated with this litigation. 

XlI. TERMINATION OF LITIGATION HOLD 

37: The parties agree that, as of the date of the entry of this Consent Decree, litigation 

is not "reasonably foreseeable" concerning the matters described above. To the extent that either 

party previously implemented a litigation holdto preserve documents. electronically stored 

information (ESI). or things related to the matters described above, the patty is no longer 

required to maintain such litigation hold. Nothing in this paragraph relieves either party of any 

other obligations imposed by this Consent Decree, 

19 
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IT IS SO ORDERED: 

This -L.!- day of Sl "" ..b",-: 

20 
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The undersigned Hereby consent to and apply for \mlry of this Consent Decree: 

j<"or the United States of America: 

THOMAS E. PEREZ 

Assistflilt Attorney General 

Civil Rights D!vlsion 


~i~~
STEVHNH. R;;ENB~ -7-"­
Chief 

REBECCA 1:1. BOND 

Deputy Chief 

CHRISTOPHER J. FREGIATO 

Atoomey 

Housing and Civil Enforcement Section 

Civil rughls Division 

US. Deparltl~nt ofJustice 

950 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. 

Northwestern BuHciillg, 7th Floor 

Wa~hinglon, D.C. 20530 

Phone: (202) 3QS,0022 

Fux: (202) 514-1116 

Chrisoophcr.Fregiato@usdoj.gov 


.For SflSSex County, Deillware 111111 

A'Jannlng ~nd 21'nmg (;ommissioll ofSussex COlln~: 


Dated: Jf:::bc,-~~"", 2012 

c,,--- (.::::;,,,,'==:,,,,. L..-.' +__..__ . 
STEPHANIE L. HANSEN 
Young Conaway Stargatt & Taylor, LLP 
Rodney Sq~are 
1000 NOlth King Street 
Wilmington, DB 19801 
Phone: (302) 571·6733 
Fax: (302) 576·3519 
.qhansen@ycsl.com 
Counsellor Ihe Defendants 
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ATTACHMENT A 

NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY 

It is the policy of Sussex County to comply with the Fair Housing Act, as amended, 42 
U.S.c. §§ 3601-3619, by ensuring that its zoning and land use decisions do not discriminate 
against persons based on race, color, religion, national origin, disability, familial status or sex. 
This policy means that, among other things, the County and all its officials, agents and 
employees will not discriminate in any aqpect of housing based on these protected 
characteristics, including by: 

(a) making unavailable or denying a dwelling to any person based on a protected 
chara~ieristic; 

(b) discriminating against any person in the terms, conditions or privileges of a dwelling, 
or in the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith based on a protected 
characteristic; 

(c) Making, printing, or publishing, or causing to be made, printed, or published any 
notice, statament, or advertisement, with respect to a dwelling that indicates any 
preference, limitation, or discrimination based on a protected characteristic; 

(d) Representing to persons because of a protected characteristic that any dwelling isnot 
available when such dwelling is in fact so available; 

(e) interfering with any person in the exercise or enjoyment of, or on account of his 
having exercised or enjoyed, or on acconnt of his having aided or encouraged any other 
person in the exercise or enjoyment of, any right protected by the Fair Housing Act; . 

(f) interfering with the funding, development, or construction of any affordable 
housing units because of a protected characteristic; and 

(g) discriminating on the basis of race or color in any aspect of the administration of its 
zoning, land use, or building ordinances, policies, practices, requirements, or processes 
relating to the use, construction, or occupancy of dwellings. 

Any person who believes that any of the above policies have been violated by the County 
may contact: 

• Sussex County's Fair Housing Compliance Officer, ________--', at 

• the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmcnt at 1-888-799-2085, or 
• the O.S. Department ofJustieeat 1-800-896-7743 or (202) 514-4713. 

22 
01: 12131981.2 



Case 1:12-cv-01591-MPT Document 7 Filed 12/19/12 Page 23 of 25 PagelD #: 65 

ATTACHMENTB 

CERTIFICATION OF TRAINING AND RECEIPT OF CONSENT DECREE 

On , 1 attended training on the federal Fair Housing Act. I 
have had all of my questions concerning these topics answered to my satisfaction. 

I also have been given and I have read a copy of the Consent Decree entered in 
United States v. Sussex County. Delaware, ot al., Case No. (D. Del.). I 
understand my legal responsibilities and will comply with those responsibilities. I further 
understand that the Court may impose sanctions on Sussex County or the Planning and 
Zoning Commission of Sussex County in violate any provision of this Decree. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws ofthe United States of America that 
the foregoing is troc and correct. 

Signature 

Print Name 

Date 

Position with Sussex County 

Home Street Address 

City, State, Zip 

Home Telephone Nunlber 

23 
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ATTACHMENT C 

FULL AND FINAL RELEASE OF CLAIMS. 

In consideration for the parties' agreement to the terms ofthe Consent Decree they 
entered into in the case of United States v. Sussex County, Delaware, pt aI., Civil Action No, 
:-_--:-;_-:" as approved by the United States District Court for the District ofDe4tware,and 
in consideration for the payment of$750,000,00, Diamond State Community Land Trust, by the 
signature .of its authorized representative below, does hereby fully release and forever disc4arge 
SUSllex County, Delaware, and the Planning and Zoning Commission of Sussex County, alOllg 
with their insurers, attorneys, related companies, J1rlncipaIs, predecessorn, successors, assigns, 
affiliates, partners, direetors, officers, agents, employers, shareholders, subsidiaries, employees, 
heirs, exeeutors, and administrators and any persons acting under their direction or control, from 
any and all fifu housing claims set forth or .related to the facts at issue in the litigation referenced 
above, or in any way related to that litigation, and any oth~r claims arising from alleged housing 
dim::rimination that it may have had against any ofthem fur any oftbe defendants' !lotions or 
statemenw related to those claims thmugh the date ofthe entry of the Consent Decree, including, 
butno! limited to, the claims !IIIsertedin its complaint in the case ofDiamond State Commuoity 
r -10. J.t'lIst. et aIn v, Sussex County l'lanning and Zoning Commission, et Ill" C,A. No, SlOA­
11-006 ITV (Superior Court of the State ()fDelaware in and for Sussex County) (the "State 
Court Litigation"). Diamond State agrees to file a motion to voluntarily dismiss lw. case in the 
State Court Litigation within five (5) days of receiving the payment referenced herein, 

Diamond State Community Land Trust aIso acknowledges that it has had an opporillnity 
to review the terms ofthis Release with its legal counsel. 

Diamond State Community Land Trust further waives any claims it may have agninst the 
United States ofAmerica, the Department of Justice, or its agents oremployces, arlsiog ou.t of' 
tbill. aetion. This FUll and Final Releas~ ofClaims constitutes the <:ntire agreement between the 
defendants and me, withou.t excepti011 or exclusion, 

I declare under penalty ofpetjury under the laws. ofthe United States of America that the 
foregoing is true and correct. 

Executed this __day of _______"20_, 

[Signature] 

[Print Name and Title] 

24 
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UNITE!) STATES DJ.sTlUCT COURT 

DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 


CERTIfICATE OF SERVICE 


I hereby certify that on November 28,2012. I 'electronically med the foregoing Con5.001 

Decree wil/Hoe Cl"rk ofCourt ~sing CM/Bell and served the document to the lb IlOWing 11011­

registefedpartlclpants by e]ccttotdcrnail antlu.s. mail; 

StepllluJje L. Hansell 

Young Conaway Statgatt &. Taylor, LLP 

Rodney Square 

IOQONorth King Street 

Wilmington,PE 19801 

~hallsell@ycst.com 
Cou,.,eljbr Defendant .• 

tHl.U~1'0I'HERJ.FREGlATO 
Hallsillgand Cjvli Enforo<lli'l>;lnl SQction 
Civil rulnt. Division 
U. t b,,,partn1entofJustice 
950. PerJl1svlviilllaAvenue, N.W. 
NOr!ltwestilm Bulldinl 
W1!$hhtgton, I).C.2a5gQ 
f'hoiie: {2Q;Z} 3Q5,0022 
FaX! (lillY:; ~4-1H6 
CbriBtopllor.Fregiato@uOOoj~gov 
Atmmeyfor P/flifltlf[ . 
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